
  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING MINUTES 

March 7, 2005 
 

Approved as corrected April 4, 2005. 

DATE:   March 7, 2005 

TIME:  7:00 PM 

PLACE:  58000 Grand River 

 

1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Young called the meeting to order at 7:03 PM. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Roll Call:  Present: Lannie Young, Supervisor 

     Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 

     Dan Cash, Trustee 

     Brent Hemker, Trustee 

     John Hicks, Trustee 

     Troy Schilling, Trustee 

 

   Absent: Pamela Johnson, Clerk 

 

                   Also Present:  Matthew Quinn, Township Attorney  

      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 

      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 

      Leslie Zawada, Township Engineer 

      Loren Crandell, Township Engineer 

      Les Cash, Fire Chief 

      Larry Phillips, Building Official 

     

    Guests:  46 

 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of February 7, 2004 

  - Approval of Disbursements 

  - Engineer Monthly Report 

  - Earth Tech WWTP Operations Report 

  - Monthly Department Reports (Fire, Zoning Officer, Building and Sheriff) 

  - Planning Commission Synopsis 

  

 The following item was removed from the Consent Agenda: 

  - Sheriff Department Report (Board did not receive) 

 

 Mr. Hemker noted that on the last page of the minutes there is a discrepancy with the adjournment 

 time.  The Recording Secretary stated that this has been corrected already. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the consent agenda as modified.  Mr. Hemker supported 

the motion. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Schilling, Hemker, Cash, Carcone, Hicks 

    Nays: None  

            Absent: Johnson 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 2 
 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
5.  ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Ms. Carcone asked if the Board would be interested in participating in the Taste In Business Expo 

which will be held Sunday, March 20, 2004 from 2:00 to 4:00 PM.  She stated that they have never 

had a municipality at this expo and felt that it would be nice to have the Township represented. 

She noted that there would be a $200 charge for the Township to participate.  It was determined 

that this issue would be included as an agenda item tonight. 

 

Mr. Hemker thanked John Hicks for the Planning Commission update that he provided the Board. 

He stated that he very much appreciated the update. 

 

Mr. Hicks stated that they received the results of the testing that was done at Continental.  He  

stated that it was determined that there is no risk as indicated by the samples taken. 

 

Mr. Young briefly discussed correspondence he received from Brent Bair, Managing Director of the 

Road Commission for Oakland County regarding gravel roads.  He stated that it is pretty informative 

and that he would be happy to make copies of this for anyone who wants one. 
 

6.   CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

 

Leslie Duff, 57220 Twelve Mile Road, discussed the Township Blight Ordinance which looks like it was 

written in 1974.  He submitted pictures to the Board of his next door neighbor’s yard.  He stated that 

he has not been able to sell his home because of his neighbor.  He noted that he is getting ready to 

put his house ups for sale again for the fourth year in a row.  He asked the Board for their help in 

getting his neighbor’s yard cleaned up. 

 

Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, gave an update of the traffic light situation at the Ten Mile 

and Martindale Roads intersection. 

  
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 The following items were requested to be added to the agenda: 

  - Appointment of Board of Election Commissioners for Lyon Township 

  - Pension Plan Vesting Schedule 

  - Taste in Business Expo 

  - Three Items not on the agenda but discussed last month (File of Life, Pass Through Fees 

    and Blitzfest) 

 

 The following item was removed from the agenda: 

  - Special Event Request for Lyon Township Park – American Cancer Society – 24 hour 

    Community Walking Event 

 

 Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  Mr. Hicks supported the  

motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
8. CONTINUATION: 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 3 
 

 
 a.  Public Hearing for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvements Proposed Special Assessment 

      District 
 

b.  Public Hearing for the Southwest Water Main Improvements Proposed Special Assessment 

      District 

 

Mr. Young explained that the public hearing for this issue was tabled last month and was kept 

 open.  This is actually a continuation so that the Board can hear more public comments, if  

 there are any. 

 

 Ms. Zawada gave a brief introduction of the water and sewer projects. 

 

 Mr. Olson noted that the number of units could change.  He stated that Riffles would like to 

 participate and that the Hendrian parcel may be interested.  He stated that the Cross of Christ 

 Church has opted not to participate.  He stated that parcel YY, which is located on Pontiac 

 Trail and is contiguous with the City of South Lyon along it’s west border, would like to opt out. 

 He noted Proto-Technics has opted in. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to close the regular meeting and open a public hearing for the  

Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvements Proposed Special Assessment District.  Ms. Carcone 

supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved.  The public hearing at 7:27 PM. 

 

 David Goldberg, Aspen Group, stated that it is with great disappointment that he stands before 

 the Board tonight.  He stated that they did not get the direction that they were hoping for at the 

 February 29, 2005 Planning Commission meeting.  He stated that as they have been told in prior 

 meetings, “lose more units, give us more”.  He stated that he was even more disappointed that 

 the importance of their group in the sewer and water SAD, was not properly conveyed to the 

 Planning Commission.  He stated that he doesn’t know how much longer he can hold the three 

 different groups together.   

 

 Mr. Goldberg stated that there are development obligations that are being asked of them that 

 in relation to the density that is being asked of them, doesn’t make economic sense to them. 

 He stated that they are being asked to be the major link in this project.  He stated that as it  

 stands right now, they are not prepared to proceed and be part of the SAD.   

 

 Mr. Goldberg stated that at the Planning Commission meeting they were asked to meet with a 

 sub-committee to go over the plan.  He noted that they have already revised the plan to  

 address some of the issues of the residents.  He stated that they have lowered the density and 

 are not prepared to move any lower.  He stated that they will be willing to participate in the 

 SAD when the Planning Commission is prepared to give them the preliminary approval that they 

 are seeking.  He stated that he is hoping that Mr. Doozan will be successful in getting the  

 sub-committee meeting scheduled immediately.  He stated that he if they can get back in  

 front of the Planning Commission and get an approval conditioned on them getting all the 

 paperwork caught up, then he is hoping that they can get on the next agenda.   

 

 Mr. Goldberg stated that he feels that somebody needs to explain to the Planning Commission 

 that from an economic standpoint that the SAD would be much more expensive if it were to go 

 down Ten Mile Road. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 4 
 

 

 Mr. Goldberg stated that since they supported the Hutto’s at the last meeting, they would like to 

 have the support in their request to table this for another thirty days to allow them to get their 

 ducks in a row.  He stated that if this PD goes away, it certainly won’t inhibit the Aspen Group’s 

 ability to develop.  He noted that they have property on Ten Mile Road.  He stated that what is 

 going to happen is that all the other benefits that come along with their project, i.e., the sewer 

 connection all the way through, the road connection all the way through and the paving of 

 Nine Mile Road, will go away.  He stated that he will be very difficult when the Township comes 

 to him asking for easements through his property, if they can’t get some expeditious resolution 

 of their project. 

 

 John Hutto, representing parcels AA and CC, stated that they are here to state that they are 

 ready to participate in the SAD.  He thanked Mr. Olson for clarifying the Township’s position on 

 three or four of their questions.  He stated that the terms are acceptable to them for four of  

 their questions: 

  - Term of the SAD?     Minimum of 20 Years 

  - Capitalization of Costs?   Two years until December, 2007 

  - Zoning Issue on light industrial parcel? Can’t be resolved at this point 

  - Sewage Capacity?    Have a meeting to discuss 

  

 Mr. Hutto stated that with Aspen not ready to go, it directly affects the financial feasibility of this 

 project, therefore, he strongly encouraged the Board to table this issue for another thirty days. 

 He stated that they need to get this right and everybody’s participation in this means a lot for 

 the benefit of the Township. 

 

 Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that it is still an option for this Board to try and pass 

 a millage and go this route.  She stated that she knows that they need the sewers, however, 

 some of these density increases are a bit too hard to swallow.  She stated that the residents don’t 

 want it. 

 

 There were no public comments specific to the water.  Mr. Quinn stated that the comments  

 already heard this evening will also apply to the water portion 

 

 Mr. Young closed the public hearing. 

 

 Mr. Olson stated that there is already a contract obligation with the Aspen Group, Quadrants and 

 Todd Wyett for the design of the sewer and water systems.  He asked Mr. Goldberg if he is making 

 a request for a 30 day tabling of this issue as well.  Mr. Goldberg responded that they are. 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 a.  Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and Designating Special Assessment District 

      for the Southwest Water Main Improvement Special Assessment District 

 

Mr. Quinn gave an overview of this project.  He stated that with the information provided tonight 

by The Aspen Group, he is not sure that they will have the proper information in order to prepare 

the Roll for this item.  He suggested that this issue and the water issue be tabled for thirty days and 

hopefully the Planning Commission is going to have them back on their agenda within the next 

thirty days.  Mr. Doozan stated that this is very possible.  He noted that the sub-committee meeting 

is scheduled tentatively for March 17, 2005.  Mr. Quinn stated that this will not give them enough 

time for publication.  He felt that it would be reasonable to adjourn both the public hearings for 

thirty days.  He stated that this will then give the enough time to incorporate the Riffles property 

into this.  He felt that they would be in better shape for the Bond Attorneys to accept this, if they 

tabled it for thirty days. 

 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 5 
 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to postpone the Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements 

and Designating Special Assessment District for the Southwest Water Main Improvement Special 

Assessment District until the April meeting.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if the Board any comments regarding this issue.  There were none. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
 b.  Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements and Designating Special Assessment District 

      for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvement Special Assessment District 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to postpone the Resolution Determining Necessity of Improvements  

and Designating Special Assessment District for the Southwest Sanitary Sewer Improvement Special  

Assessment District until the April meeting.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if the Board had any comments regarding this issue.  Mr. Hemker stated that he is 

not in favor of trading off anything for density under a threat from any developer.  He stated that 

he asked the Commissioners not to give out increases for anything when he left the Planning 

Commission. 

 

Mr. Cash stated that this started in 1995 with a plan and the goals of the Township Board.  He  

stated that this is the last piece of the puzzle.  He stated that he doesn’t believe that there is 

anybody on the Planning Commission still around or knows anything about what happened in 

1995/1996.  He felt it would be helpful if the Planning Commission was updated on 

the history and the goal of the Township and what they are trying to achieve with the sewer and 

water for the Township. 

 

Mr. Young stated that he attended the Planning Commission meeting when this issue came up. 

He stated that one of the concerns he has is and feels very strong about is that as a Board and 

Planning Commission they need to determine a couple things: 

1.  If somebody comes up with a development and are offering a PD and are saying that there 

     are amenities that warrant consideration, then the first action of the Board or the Planning  

     Commission should be to determine and that both parties agree that it is an amenity.  He  

     stated that once they agree that it is an amenity then there should be some qualifiable way 

     to establish what the amenities are.  He stated that the Township doesn’t have a big bank 

     account to pay for these things.  He stated that the only thing that they have to trade is  

     more homes.  He stated that if the Board and the Planning Commission are acting on what 

     they believe is true for the public sector they need to determine, i.e. if a road is proposed to 

     be paved, what the cost would be, and then they could trade-off or a swap. 

2.  Determine if it is in fact an amenity, do they agree on what the dollar amount of the amenity 

     is and then does the Township want it. 

He stated that this puts things in a sphere that he can understand.  He stated that he is not so sure 

at the Planning Commission meeting that he sat in on, that this was clearly understood.  He stated 

that there was no discussion as to what the actual value of the amenity was and whether or not 

the Planning Commission even wanted it.  He stated that he fully supports the fact that they  

formed a sub-committee to go over this and make a recommendation to the Planning  

Commission, who will then make a recommendation to the Board.  He stated that they just have 

to wait to see what the Planning Commission sub-committee comes up with.  He stated that he 

does not feel that they are being coerced.  He felt that this is a very important project for the 

Township and that they need to consider the value of it and just how important it is to the 

Township.  He stated that there is a lot of things hanging in the balance with this development 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 6 
 

for a lot of different folks. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she agrees with Mr. Cash.  She stated that she has been on the Board 

the longest of anybody here.  She stated that she understands why they went into the water  

and sewer business.  She stated that she also understands that they have to protect the Township’s 

borders.  She stated that these are hard decisions for them to make, but this is a very important  

one.  She stated that if you start to lose property then you also lose tax base.  She stated that she is 

not sure how strong of a message they can send to the Planning Commission, but hopes that they 

take a very good, long, hard look at this.  She stated that she also agrees with Mr. Hemker and  

does not like giving out extra density, but sometimes you have to give a little to get a lot.  She  

stated that this is a big part of getting the sewers down to the Township’s southwest border and 

it would be impossible to get it there without the help of the developer.  She stated that the  

Township does not have the money to run the sewers by themselves.   

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson  

 

  Motion approved. 

 
c.  Bond Resolution Confirming Sale of Bonds - Special Assessment Bonds Series 2005-A, and  

     General Obligation Bonds Series 2005-A  

 

 Mr. Quinn explained that these are presented by Bond Counsel.  He stated that the title of the 

 resolution is to be entitled “Bond Resolution Confirming Sale of Bonds”.  He stated that this 

 resolution is an acknowledgement that the action taken by the Treasurer, Supervisor and Clerk 

 were proper in regards to the sale of the bonds.  He stated that this is in proper order for the 

 Board’s consideration this evening.  

 

 Ms. Carcone stated that this actually was for the West Pontiac Trail Water Special Assessment 

 District.  She stated that they received three or four bids on this and that they got a very good 

 rate on this. 

 

 Mr. Cash moved by resolution confirming sale of bonds, Special Assessment Bonds Series 2005-A and  

General Obligation Bonds Series 2005-A.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments regarding the motion.  There were none. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Schilling, Cash, Young, Hicks, Hemker, Carcone 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

  

 Motion approved. 

 
d.  Reconsideration of Acceptance of Donation Documents for Woodwind Well (Tabled from 

     November and December) – Possible Action to Postpone, Developer and School Preparing 

     Proposed Contracts 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that the first thing to do is have a motion to remove this issue from the table. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to remove the reconsideration of acceptance of donation  

documents for Woodwind Well from the table.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 7 
 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Quinn explained that when this matter was previously discussed there were some questions 

concerning the documentation.  He stated that there were some meetings held to try to resolve  

the misunderstanding with the School District as it pertained to the REU’s applicable to the 

High School, Middle School and Elementary School property as well as the discussion regarding 

their donation of the water main improvements as well as sewer improvements that were  

installed along Ten Mile Road.  He stated that there was consideration saying lets make this a 

universal solution to the discussions that had been going on.  He stated that he can report to the 

Board that he believes that this has been accomplished. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that within the Board’s packet is the revised document entitled Declaration of  

Charitable Gift under which Woodwind Water System, LLC is donating a certain legal description 

of land to the Township.  The legal description is attached as Exhibit A.  Also attached is Exhibit B, 

which is the deed that transfers the land to the Township.  He stated that it specifically states, both 

the agreement and the deed, that the Township, besides the surface rights is also receiving the 

underground rights to the water system.  Also attached is Exhibit C, which is the gift of the personal 

property, which is the two 16” drilled water wells and all distribution equipment that has been 

installed by Woodwind Water.  He stated that they also have the IRS Form 8283, the Non-cash 

Charitable Contribution Form.  He stated that the Township is only being asked to acknowledge 

the gift and then the appraiser for the owner will complete this form and file it with their next 

year’s tax return from which they are seeking the gift credit.  He stated that this is one set of  

documents between Woodwind and the Township. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that there is a companion document entitled “Agreement Regarding Payment 

of Water Charges”.  He stated that this is where they get into the understanding between all of 

the property owners, which are Woodwind Investment, Curtis A&M Lyon, Curtis A&M Northville, 

Walnut Creek Estates, LLC and Wolak Custom Homes, LLC.  He stated that what this document 

represents is that they agreed with the schools that the cost of their water taps would total 

$95,700 and with the administrative fees it would total $101,270.  He stated that this is an 

acknowledgement with the Township that the school’s water taps are going to be paid for by 

Woodwind.  He stated that with this purchase the Township is confirming that there will be 

sufficient water capacity for the Elementary, Middle and High School properties when the capital  

charges have been paid by Woodwind.  He stated that Woodwind is entering into another set of 

documents called “Installment Payment Agreements”, which they are granting the Township a 

lien against their three properties.  This land will total the amount of $101,270.  He stated that the 

payments will be made over a ten year time period.  The School District has agreed orally but 

the paperwork hasn’t caught up with us tonight. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that the Board asked that an overall universal settlement be worked out.  He  

stated that he felt that this has now been done.  He stated that after tonight the well will belong 

to the Township.  He stated that they will have final agreement with the School District, whose 

REU’s fees will be paid by Woodwind in accordance with the Installment Payment Agreement. 

He stated that they will have all the final documents at the next meeting. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that the proper thing to do would be to have a motion for the Declaration of 

Charitable Gift, which will incorporate all the supporting documents outlined this evening.  A 

second motion would be to adopt the Agreement Regarding Payment of Water Charges, which 

he has the final revised version of.  He stated that he distributed this evening an updated version 

of the document that the Board had.  He stated that he does have copies of the changes, if the  

Board members would like to see them.  A third motion would be for the Board to accept the 

Installment Payment Agreement No. 2. 

 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 8 
 

Mr. Cash made a motion approve the Declaration of Charitable Gift from Woodwind Water 

to Lyon Township.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any questions.  Mr. Hemker questioned if they were running a risk 

that the schools would not follow up next month.  Mr. Quinn responded that there is no risk. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hemker, Young, Schilling, Cash, Carcone, Hicks  

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to approve the Agreement Regarding Payment of Water Charges. 

Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hicks, Young, Schilling, Carcone, Hemker, Cash 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to approve the Installment Agreement Payment No. 2 for three  

separate pieces of property identified as 21-22-300-055, 21-23-400-015 and 21-24-300-008. 

Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  There were none. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Hemker, Young, Schilling, Cash, Hicks 

    Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
e.  Impervious Surface Standards – Second Reading and Proposed Adoption of Text Amendment 

       to Zoning Ordinance 

 

Mr. Doozan explained that there really is no change from last month.  He stated that they are 

proposing to implement new maximum lot coverage standards for the non-residential districts in  

the Township, excluding the B-1 districts, which will be addressed in future months. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to approve the second reading and proposed adoption of text  

amendment to the Zoning Ordinance for Impervious Surface Standards.  Ms. Carcone supported  

the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none.  He then asked if the Board 

had an comments.  Mr. Schilling suggested that they include a reference as to where to find B-1 

standards.  Mr. Doozan indicated that they could do this. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Schilling, Carcone, Cash, Young, Hicks, Hemker 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 9 
 

 
 a.  Radian Tower – Special Land Use Approval Request (Ownership issue to be determined) 

 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 

March 1, 2005 regarding this issue. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion approve AP-04-41, Radian Communication Monopole, Special Land 

Use.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Mr. Hemker stated that his  

comments are related to Mr. Olson’s memo regarding the ownership of the tower.  Mr. Hemker 

questioned if they could make the special land use contingent on the ownership.  He stated  

that he would like to see the Township own the tower so that they can get the revenues from it. 

He felt that the revenues would outweigh the maintenance of the tower. 

 

Patricia Coates, Oakland County CLEMIS Administrator, gave a brief overview of the proposed 

system that they are placing throughout Oakland County.  She stated that they realize the  

value of the municipal property, therefore, they have offered ownership of the monopoles to  

the municipality that they are placed in.  She stated that most of the communities have taken 

them up on the offer of ownership.  She noted that there were only 3 out of 36 who have 

decided not to own the towers.  She stated that if the County maintains ownership and if there 

are commercial co-locators on the tower then the monies that the County receives from these 

would go right back into the radio project and not into the general fund. 

 

Mr. Olson briefly discussed the maintenance of the tower.  He stated that the applicant went 

before the ZBA for a variance to be allowed to leave the pole galvanized rather than painted. 

The maintenance on a galvanized tower is much less than a painted tower.  The ZBA did grant 

the variance. 

 

Mr. Olson questioned what will happen with the tower in thirty years from now when everything 

is satellite radio.  Ms. Coates responded that she has been in public safety communications for 

thirty years and has been asked that question many times over that period.  She stated that 

this has never occurred yet.  She stated that satellites are wonderful things but she still feels that 

they are still going to have tower sights because they need the reliability for the safety  

communications. 

 

Mr. Schilling questioned how much time they have to decide if the Township wants to own this 

tower.  Mr. Quinn stated that it will probably be on the agenda for the April meeting.  He stated 

that Mr. Olson will probably be ready to finalize his recommendation by then. 

 

Mr. Young discussed the arborvitae plantings.  He felt that the arborvitae look shabby and really 

don’t screen very well.  He asked if the applicant is locked into having arborvitaes.  Ms. Coates 

responded that they are not.  Chief Cash stated that they are not locked into planting  

arborvitaes, but the reason they want the spacing between them is so that they can see into the 

area. 

 

Ms. Coates stated that with regard to the timeline, getting through the Oakland Count Board of 

Commissioners can take anywhere from four to six weeks depending upon their schedule.  She 

stated that some communities have allowed them to have a notice to proceed before the 

documents are actually signed and some communities have made them wait.  She stated that 

whichever way Lyon Township decides on this is fine. 

 

Mr. Hicks questioned if there are any special considerations on this type of radio system for  

co-locations with respect to interference.  He questioned how far apart a co-locator has to be 

from this equipment.  Ms. Coates responded that in general they need to have separations of 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 10 
 

at least ten feet.  She stated that it depends upon the power and the frequency that the  

commercial co-locator is on.  She noted that most co-locators are on 900mhz and the County 

is on 800mhz.  She stated that the exception to this would be Nextel who is also on 800mhz. 

 

Ms. Coates stated that if the Township were to assume ownership and does have a possible 

commercial co-locator, they should have the co-locator do a structural capacity study of the 

tower.  She noted that there is structural capacity on the tower for two commercial co-locators, 

but it can vary depending on the type of antennas or equipment that the co-locator wants to 

put up there.  She stated that the structural study as well as an interference study should be done 

at the expense of the co-locator. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All   

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 
 

b.  Appointment of Board of Election Commissioners for Lyon Township 

  

 Mr. Young stated that this item was requested to be on the agenda by the Township Clerk.  He 

 asked for volunteers.  Mr. Cash and Mr. Hemker volunteered. 

 

 Mr. Hicks made a motion to accept Mr. Cash and Mr. Hemker as new members of the Township’s 

 Board of Election Commissioners.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

 Mr. Young questioned if the Clerk is automatically the third member.  Mr. Quinn responded that this 

 is correct. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All   

     Nays: None 

                      Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
c.  Resolution to Adopt VeriSign Payment Services Merchant Agreement V7 (for credit card and 

     on-line payments) 

 

 Ms. Carcone explained that Townships are not allowed to accept credit cards.  She stated that 

 the County has come up with a system called “Payyourlocaltaxes.com”, which would allow 

 the residents to pay their property taxes online using a credit card.  She stated that this resolution 

 will allow the Township to enter into an agreement with Oakland County on behalf of the  

 residents.  She stated that if you pay taxes to Lyon Township, whether a resident or not, there is a 

 fee for the use of this service.  She stated that even though there is a fee to use this service, it is still  

giving the taxpayers another option of how they can pay their property taxes. 

 

Ms. Carcone made motion to enter into a resolution called “paylocaltaxes.com” with Oakland 

County.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young questioned if there is computer hardware required for this.  Ms. Carcone responded  

that the resident will go on the website and follow the prompts to pay their taxes.  She noted  

that she has to open up bank accounts at National City Bank so that when Oakland County 

receives the tax money they can deposit it into a separate bank account.  She stated that the 

County will be e-mailing her a list of taxes that have been paid. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  Jim Hamilton, 24200 Martindale Road,  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 11 
 

questioned if the Board is going to publish this along with the fees.  Ms. Carcone responded  

that they will.  She stated that the fees depend upon the amount of the tax bill.  She stated that 

she plans on sending a newsletter out with the summer tax bills.  She stated that maybe she  

can get the South Lyon Herald to publish this also. 

 

John Bell, 23113 Currie Road, questioned who gets the fee.  Ms. Carcone responded that Oakland 

County would get the fee.  Mr. Bell questioned if there is any extra work on the Township’s part. 

Ms. Carcone responded that the extra work would be opening a bank account and the  

maintaining the account. 

 

  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Carcone, Hicks, Schilling, Hemker, Young 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
 d.  Autodialers for existing pump stations 

  

 Ms. Zawada explained that there are five pump stations and the waste water treatment plant that  

are still on the Oakland County data system for alarm notification.  She stated that it is her  

 understanding that any alarms that happen at the plant or the five pumps stations goes 

 to Oakland County who then contact Earth Tech.  Earth Tech then responds. 

 She discussed the options that are available which are listed in the Giffels-Webster Engineers letter 

 dated February 24, 2005 and the Earth Tech letter dated May 20, 2004. 

 

 Mr. Cash made a motion to replace the existing data system with the HS-900 autodialers at the 

 pump stations and a sensaphone autodialer at the waste water treatment plant for a cost not 

 to exceed $14,542.00.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there is any comments.  Mr. Cash felt that this will save time so that they are 

 not waiting for a phone call from Oakland County when an alarm goes off. 

 

 Mr. Olson noted that if they consider all the costs, the Township would have a three to four year 

 payback for this investment. 

 

 Ms. Carcone questioned why they are not including these when the pump stations are built.  

 Mr. Olson responded that they are now.  He noted that the County was the first operator of the 

 system, therefore, it was their stuff on the pumps.  Ms. Carcone questioned if any of the future 

 lift stations will have this included with them at construction.  Ms. Zawada responded that the 

 few that were built along Grand River do have the auto dialers.  Ms. Carcone questioned if it 

will really take the Township six years to get even.  Mr. Olson responded that there is always going 

to be an operating expense. 

 

 Mr. Hemker questioned what minimal costs meant.  Jim Pawlowski, Earth Tech, responded that  

 he is not aware of the final selection as to whether to use existing radio or go with a hard phone 

 line.  He stated that he could not take a guess as to what minimal would mean under this 

 proposal.   

 

After further brief discussion, it was determined that the Board needs more information regarding 

this issue.  The following subsidiary motion was made: 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to postpone the autodialers for existing pump stations until they have 

more information on the life expectancies, the costs so that they can have a complete picture of 

what this entails so that they can make a decision.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 12 
 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any comments regarding the motion.  There were none. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
e.  Timber Trail Water Main and Sanitary Sewer – Tentative establishment of SAD 

 

Mr. Quinn explained that the Board has been provided with a petition for sanitary sewer 

improvements, water main improvements and to create a special assessment district signed 

by Tower Development Company who owns 100% of the area to be included in this SAD.  He 

stated that along with the petition is the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to Make 

Improvements.  This estimates the construction costs at $96,966.66 for the sewer and water  

improvements.  He stated that the property owner has requested the purchase of 10 REU’s be 

included within this SAD in the amount of $60,259.70.  The total amount to be assessed against the 

land would be $157,226.32.  He stated that by approving this resolution the Board would be 

scheduling a public hearing for April 4, 2005 for anyone to consider objections for the creation of 

this district. 

 

 Mr. Schilling made a motion to approve the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to  

 Make Improvements for the Timber Trail Water Main and Sanitary Sewer.  Mr. Hicks supported the 

  motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Ms. Carcone asked Mr. Quinn if they 

 are going to try and sell this one with one of the other bonds.  Mr. Quinn responded that this one  

 would definitely piggyback on one of the other ones, perhaps the Spaulding Road or the 

 Woodwind Well No. 2. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Carcone, Cash, Hemker, Schilling, Hicks 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
 f.  457 Plan Match for Township 

  

 Mr. Cash explained his understanding of the Township’s 457 Plan after talking with Chris Olson and 

Rana Emmons, the Township Auditor.  He reviewed his comments cited in his memo to the Board 

dated February 24, 2005. 

 

 Mr. Olson stated that there really won’t be any major impact on the budget if the Board decides to 

 do this.  He stated that he has already budgeted for this. 

 

 Mr. Cash stated that he did speak to Rana, who indicated it was her understanding that prior to this 

 being adopted was the 1.45% from the Township and the employee was going to be expensed to 

 Medicare.  He stated that however, whatever way the motion was worded, the 7.65% was  

 matched from the Township and the employees.  He stated that the 1.45% was an extra to send to 

 Medicare. 

 

 Ms. Carcone stated that she remembered when the 6.2% was brought up to the Board, what the 

 Township was doing was not penalizing the people who were actually hired after March 31, 1986. 

 She stated that they are required by law to put in 1.45%.  She stated that Mr. Cash gets to keep his 

 1.45% in his paycheck.  She stated that she thinks that is how he came up with the 1.45% being  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 13 
 

 added onto the 7.65%. 

 

 Mr. Cash made a motion to have all employees of Lyon Township put in 7.65%, which is also 

 matched by the Township, 7.65%, for a total of 15.30% into the 457 Plan.  Mr. Young supported the  

motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  John Bell, 23113 Currie Road, questioned how 

 this would affect the part-time employees of the Library.  Mr. Cash responded that anyone 

 employed after March 31, 1986 already have this included.  He noted that this only affects three 

 employees. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Mr. Hemker stated that anyone who 

 was hired after March 31, 1986 were required to participate in Medicare and anyone who was 

 employed prior to this do not participate in Medicare.  He stated that from his understanding that 

 of what the Township Board did at that time is that this was done as an offset.  He stated that he  

 does not really view this as an extra benefit because they really don’t get anything more. 

 

 Mr. Olson pointed out that this change was initiated by a Federal Act and not something that the 

 Township initiated. 

 

 Mr. Young stated that he did have some conversation with Rana and with Mr. Cash.  He stated that 

 it is his understanding that over and above the 1.45% the Board chose to put another 1.45% on 

 there, which the three employees hired before March 31, 1986 do not receive.  He stated that the 

 1.45% he agrees with being put in for Medicare, but the additional 1.45% is a mistake.  He stated  

 that there are only two options that he can see, either give the three employees the 1.45% or take 

 it away from everybody else. 

 

 Ms. Carcone noted that back when this happened there weren’t as many employees working  

 here, there was no medical insurance and there was no pension plan. 

 

 Mr. Hicks stated that two people have talked to Rana and are giving slightly different explanations. 

 He stated that he would like to see written verification of this from Rana, therefore, he made the 

 following subsidiary motion: 

 

 Mr. Hicks made a motion to postpone this issue until such time that they can get written verification 

 from the Auditor.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved. 

 
 g.  Purchase of a Generator – Earth Tech 

 

 Mr. Olson explained that both Giffels-Webster and Earth Tech have been working on this.  He 

 noted that they did look at generators last year and received bids for them.  He stated that the 

 lowest bid that they got last year was approximately $10,000 higher than what they got this year. 

 He briefly discussed the quotes that they received.  He noted that there is $50,000 in the capital 

 area designated for the sewer treatment plant and this was a designated item for that. 

 

 Ms. Carcone made a motion to purchase a portable emergency generator at the cost of 

 $29,426.89.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

 Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Mr. Hemker questioned if these 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 14 
 

 funds would come out of the Sewer Fund.  Mr. Olson responded that they would. 

 

 Mr. Hicks questioned what would happen if there is a general power failure, like what happened a 

 few years ago.  He questioned if the generator would be moved around.  Ms. Zawada responded 

 that they do have two hours worth of storage.  She stated that if the Township owned their own 

 generator it would be much more economical.  She noted that the generator would have to be 

 moved around. 

 

 Mr. Young stated that he has a hard time understanding why they have lift stations in the Township 

 that have different design specifications.  He questioned how this happened.  Mr. Crandell  

 responded that the Oakland County Drain Commissioner was the operator at that time.  He briefly 

 explained the process they go through now. 

 

 After further information, it was determined that the Board needs more information regarding this 

 issue, therefore, the following subsidiary motion was made: 

 

 Mr. Cash made a motion to postpone this issue until the next meeting.  Ms. Carcone supported the  

motion. 

 

  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

     Nays: None 

             Absent: Johnson 

 

  Motion approved. 

 

 The Board took a five minute break. 

 
h.  Copperwood PD file #AP-03-10 

 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 

March 2, 2005 regarding this issue. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that they have reviewed the Planned Development Agreement and the latest 

draft, dated February 24, 2005, is the latest document and is in the appropriate form.  He stated 

that they do approve the contents of the Planned Development Agreement.  He stated that this 

would be subject to all of the exhibits being attached to it and approved by McKenna Associates, 

Inc. prior to recording.  He stated that it is important to note that in the last draft there are really  

only two things of major change from previous drafts.  First deals with the escrow provision on Page 

14 Paragraph 10f, which reads “$300,000 will be placed into an escrow agreement with the  

Township Treasurer upon approval and execution of this PD Agreement and the delivery by the  

Township of permits for the construction of the internal roads and first residences within the  

property”.  He explained the reasons for this language.  The other major change deals with the 

availability of the sanitary sewer and water systems.  He read the current language in Paragraphs  

12a and 12b regarding the sanitary sewer and water systems. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that the changes are in the final format for the Board’s approval.  He stated that 

they have also reviewed the Master Deed, Bylaws and Road Maintenance Easements and the last 

draft of each of these (Master Deed dated February 21, 2005; Bylaws dated February 8, 2005; Road  

Easement dated February 21, 2005).  He stated that they do approve and are satisfied with the 

contents of these documents subject to any exhibits being confirmed for these.   

 

Mr. Quinn stated that any motion made approving the PD Agreement, the document and the  

zoning are not effective until the following two things happen: 

1.  The Planned Development Agreement is recorded with Oakland County.   

2.  Once his office gets notice of the recording they will issue to the Clerk’s office the notice of  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 15 
 

     adoption, which means for the Zoning Ordinance to go into effect it has to be at that time  

     published in the newspaper.  It is at this point that the zoning takes place and it is not until such  

     time that the developer can get any building permits. 

 

Mr. Olson suggested that they get an update on the water situation from the Township Engineer. 

Mr. Crandell reviewed the information contained in the Giffels-Webster Engineers letter dated 

March 4, 2005 regarding this issue.  He stated that it is important that the developer understands 

that the Township may not be able to provide water to this development. 

     

Mr. Hemker made a motion to approve the Planned Development Agreement dated February 

24, 2005 subject to the conditions cited in the March 2, 2005 McKenna Associates, Inc. letter. 

Mr. Cash supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there are any public comments regarding this issue.   

 

Robert Carson, Attorney, stated that they do understand that there is a risk as to whether or not 

their development will be able to be serviced with water. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Ms. Carcone stated that she knows 

that the developer is willing to put up the $300,000 for the roads.  However, she stated that she has 

been in the negotiating meetings with the School District and that Bob Harris had a little problem  

with the sewer.  She stated that the Township has to pick up the tab of approximately $38,000 to 

$39,000 for the school to put the sewer deeper along their property that would service  

Copperwood.  She stated that the only way that she can approve this is to add the $38,000+ to 

this agreement because the Township had to expend this money and that she did not feel that it 

is fair that the Township had to expend this money. 

 

Mr. Carson told the Board what he knows of the situation between the School Board and the 

Township.  He noted that they did pay an additional $75,000 above and beyond the $300,000.  He 

stated that whatever they have been asked to do, they have exceeded it.  He stated that he is 

not in the position today to add to this.  He stated that he thought that when the last request for 

the $75,000 was made, that it was done.   

 

Ms. Carcone further discussed what happened in the fact that the Township had to expend money 

out of the Sewer Enterprise Fund.  She stated that as a Fiduciary for the Township, she would like to 

recap these funds. 

 

Mr. Carson discussed some of the meetings that Copperwood attended with the School District  

and the Township. 

 

Mr. Hemker stated that what happened at the Planning Commission level when this first came  

through with a preliminary planned development.  The developer’s proposal was $300,000 for  

roads, if they have sewer at their property line or across the street.  He stated that when Mr. Soper 

made his motion he specifically stated in that motion that the $300,000 was for roads. 

 

Mr. Carson stated that the first time it was with water and sewer and then the Township was 

confronted by the School District.  He stated that at that point in time, the issue came up again. 

Mr. Hemker stated that at the Planning Commission level it was approved as $300,000 for roads. 

Mr. Carson stated that if they want to approach it that way, then they need to take into account 

that they have donated an additional $75,000 since then. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that this was a private deal between the School District and Copperwood. 

Mr. Young stated that it is part of school’s extortion of the Township to try and get money and 

Copperwood paid the fee.  He stated that to be quite honest, the school tried to extort money 

from the Township.  Mr. Carson stated that in their minds it was a way to resolve a claim which  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 16 
 

was three times this amount against the Township.  He stated that they were asked to step up and 

they thought they had. 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that this is what she believes for the Township and hopes that they don’t 

misjudge this.  She stated that they are taking $39,000 out of the sewer enterprise fund for deeper 

sewers to benefit the extension of the sewers district that goes along the school property for  

Copperwood’s benefit.  She feels that they should not be doing this. 

 

Mr. Carson stated that he does not know how this came about where the Township has agreed to 

pay this money in addition to the $75,000 that Copperwood is paying. 

 

Mr. Young stated that he does understand Ms. Carcone’s position on this.  He stated that she is 

being a good Treasurer in trying to protect the interest of the Township.  He stated that this has 

been a very complicated agreement.  There has been a lot of disagreement with the School 

Board.  He briefly reviewed the sequence of events that happened with this. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Schilling, Cash, Hemker, Hicks, Young 

    Nays: Carcone 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to approve the Master Deed, Bylaws and Condominium Subdivision 

Plan subject to the conditions cited in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated March 2, 2005. 

Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Olson stated that they should once again ask 

the developer to acknowledge the water supply situation.  He stated that the applicant does have 

a statement on the record regarding the water supply and the timing of it.  Mr. Carson stated that 

he does stand by what he stated earlier with regard to the water supply. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hemker, Hicks, Carcone, Schilling, Cash, Young 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
i.  Spaulding Road/11 Mile – Tentative Establishment of SAD – Paving/Water 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that the Board has been presented with copies of petitions for the Eleven Mile 

Road paving and the Milford Road and Spaulding Road improvements.  These petitions have 

been signed by the Elkows and by Crystal Creek Land, LLC.  He stated that with the petitions 

being presented, he has prepared the first resolution, Resolution of Tentative Declaration of  

Intention to Make Improvements, which calls for a cost estimated of $3,500,000.  It also calls for a 

public hearing to be held on Monday, April 4, 2005. 

 

Mr. Young questioned if the $3,500,000 is for the water and the road.  Mr. Quinn responded that  

this is correct.  He stated that the entire amount is being assessed against the property owners. 

 

Mr. Cash made motion to approve the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to Make 

Improvements for the Eleven Mile Road paving and the Milford Road and Spaulding Road water 

improvements in the amount of $3,500,000.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any public comments.  There were none.  He then asked if there 

were any comments from the Board.  There were none. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 17 
 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Schilling, Hicks, Cash, Young, Hemker, Carcone 

    Nays: None 

            Absent:  Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

  
j.  Spaulding Road/11 Mile – Tentative Establishment of SAD – Sewer 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that this is for the sanitary sewer which will go along Spaulding Road.  He stated 

that the petition has been signed by the involved property owners.  The estimated cost of this 

project is $1,000,000.  He stated that the assessment will be against the land in the district.  He  

stated that the public hearing for this would be held on April 4, 2005. 

 

Mr. Hicks made motion to adopt the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intentions to Make  

Improvements to the Spaulding Road Sanitary Sewer Improvements in the amount of $1,000,000. 

Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Paul Elkow questioned if the Board would be  

agreeable to a special meeting with hopes of speeding the process up. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Schilling, Cash, Young, Hicks, Hemker 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Young suggested that Mr. Elkow contact Mr. Olson with regard to the possibility of scheduling a 

special meeting. 

 

Mr. Quinn noted that the timing on this SAD would be as follows: 

 - a public hearing held at the April meeting 

 - confirmation of the roll held at the May meeting 

 - the bonds would be sold in June or July 

 - proceeds will be received the beginning of August 

 
k.  Conditional Zoning Ordinance – First Reading 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that Draft #3 is the most recent draft.  He stated that this conditional rezoning is 

the Township’s response to the new State Law that allows, basically, contract zoning.  He briefly 

discussed what this ordinance does by citing an example.  He stated that it is not intended to be a 

replacement for the Zoning Ordinance.  It is to be acted upon within what the Board expects the 

Zoning Ordinance to be.  He stated that this is a parallel request.  An applicant will still have to file 

an application for rezoning and for a conditional rezoning.  He stated that the conditional rezoning 

application will be the developer’s proposal as to what restrictions they would like to put on their 

property under the zoning that they have requested.  He stated that they have placed in this 

document some suggestions as to what the Township would like to see as far as offers by the 

developers under this rezoning conditional ordinance. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that what the State Law specifically states is that the Township cannot demand 

anything from the developer.  It is the developer that must request the particular conditions that  

they would like the rezoning under.  He stated that what they have done with this ordinance is that 

they require a pre-application meeting.  He stated that at this meeting, since the application has 

not been filed yet, it is his opinion that the Township can have some blunt discussions with the 

property owners.  He stated that after those discussions, the developer can then complete their 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 18 
 

application and submit it to the Township to go through the process.   

 

Mr. Quinn state that if there is an approval of the conditional zoning, there will be a written  

document, which is then recorded against the legal description of the land and will stay there 

forever.  He stated that the only way to remove that written contract zoning is if sometime later 

another property owner on that same parcel comes in and asks for a rezoning. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that one of the Planning Commission’s concerns was how do they tell how long 

a conditional contract is valid.  He stated that it is indicated in the ordinance that it is valid for two 

years from the effective date of the rezoning.  He stated that it is also stated that the developer has 

to obtain construction permits.  He stated that in other words, if two years passes before the  

developer begins construction, then the contract is null and void.  He stated that the Township  

Board would then pass a resolution stating that the contract is voided and then it would be  

recorded. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that this can be a very good tool to use in certain circumstances.  It is not 

intended to take the place of the Planned Development Ordinance.  It is to be used in limited 

circumstances. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to adopt the first reading of the Conditional Zoning Ordinance. 

Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Schilling stated that on Page 9, Paragraph 6 

it appears that there will not be a public hearing at the Board level, just at the Planning Commission 

level.  Mr. Quinn responded that this is correct.  He stated that almost all zoning matters have the 

public hearing at the Planning Commission level. 

 

Mr. Schilling stated that on Page 7, Paragraph 3a, it talks about a one year extension.  Mr. Quinn 

stated that this is correct.  He stated that the landowner must show good cause as to why the 

extension should be granted.  He stated that it is totally discretionary with the Board. 

 

Mr. Young stated that he likes this ordinance.  He stated that he does like the idea of a  

pre-application meetin. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hicks, Hemker, Cash, Carcone, Schilling, Young 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
l.  Woodwind Well Improvements Special District #3 

 

Mr. Quinn explained that this contract basically deals with additional charges for the construction 

of the well house and the water main within the Woodwind Well Special Assessment District No. 1. 

The property owners have re-petitioned and the petition is properly signed by the different  

components.   

 

Mr. Crandell stated that the SAD, itself, is $365,352.19.  The Township’s portion of this is $103,834.50.   

The total project is $469,186.69.  He stated that the Township’s portion is part of an earlier  

agreement. 

 

Mr. Quinn stated that in Item 4 the estimated costs would be $469,186.69.  The amount assessed 

against the land in the district would be $365,352.19.  The general obligation of the Township would 

be $103,834.50.  He stated that this resolution calls for a public hearing on April 4, 2005. 

 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 19 
 

Ms. Carcone stated that she already has a Woodwind Well No. 2 District.  She stated that this 

needs to be called No. 3 or a supplement.  Mr. Quinn noted that it would not be a problem to 

call this No. 3. 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to 

Make Improvements for the Woodwind Well Improvements Special Assessment District No. 3 in 

the amount of $365,352.19 with the Township’s portion of $103,834.50 for a total of $469,186.69. 

Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  There were none. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Cash, Carcone, Schilling, Hicks, Hemker 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
m.  Amendment to Retiree Medical Insurance – First Reading 

 

Mr. Olson reviewed the comments indicated in his memorandum to the Board dated March 1, 

2005 regarding the amendment to the retiree medical insurance. 

 

Mr. Young questioned what documents they would be amending.  Mr. Olson responded that they 

would be amending Section 2.82 of the Township’s codified ordinance, which is the years of  

service for eligibility. 

 

Mr. Cash made a motion to consider this the first reading of the Amendment to the Retiree Medical 

Insurance.  Mr. Hicks supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Hicks stated that under Section 2.82, Elected 

Official, he suggested that it indicate a full-time elected official.  He noted that Supervisor is 

excluded under definitions.  Mr. Quinn stated that this ordinance was adopted when the Township 

did have a full-time supervisor.  He stated that if they removed the word “supervisor” they would 

not be affecting any previous activities. 

 

Mr. Hemker stated that he has a real problem making changes to ordinances for one person.  He 

felt that this just leads into trouble.  He stated that above and beyond on that is the cost.  He gave 

some background information with regard to medical insurance and costs.  He stated that he did 

some research of the costs and explained what he found.  Mr. Olson stated that it may not be 

apples to apples, it is something that they will have to check out. 

 

Mr. Young stated right now they currently pay $730 per month.  Mr. Olson responded that this is 

correct.  Mr. Young stated that if she were to be retired the costs, based on Mr. Olson’s figures, 

would be $571 per month.  He stated that he is looking at the requirements as far as the definitions 

with regard to years of service for this particular case, if they hire a person in the future to work at 

the Township that is 61 years old and they served for 13 years, they would qualify for this package. 

He questioned if this is unique enough so that they are covered.  Mr. Olson responded that without 

going into detail and committing the Township, he can’t say, but it would depend on the quality of 

the things that that particular person applying for the position would bring to the table irrespective 

of their age. 

 

Mr. Hemker stated that there is something that is coming out in 2007 or 2008 where the Township 

has to start accounting for retiree medical care costs.  He stated that there is a requirement that 

the Township is going to have to start funding this which will come out of the budget.  He stated 

that it would be similar to a pension fund, but it would be a retiree health care fund that the 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 20 
 

Township would have to establish.  He stated that he got all the information regarding this at a 

MTA meeting. 

 

Ms. Carcone gave some history of the employees of the Township.  She noted that her and Mary 

started at the Township three weeks apart and there was no insurance.  She stated that they 

recently just got a pension plan.  She stated that Mary is 73 years old and can’t work six more years. 

She stated that if Mary was physically able to work six more years, then she would be here.  She 

stated that Mary has been a model employee. 

 

Mr. Schilling questioned if they are trying to retire Mary or does Mary want to retire.  Ms. Carcone 

responded that Mary has wanted to retire for the past year. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that there is no question that this is individually driven, but this is not all that unusual  

even in contracts when there are certain years in union contracts or organizations.  He stated that 

this is not that uncommon.  Mr. Hemker stated that if they were an at will employer it would not be 

a usual circumstance. 

 

Mr. Young stated that he would still like to pursue some of the options that Mr. Hemker discussed. 

He stated that this is a unique situation and something that they need to take action on. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hicks, Young, Carcone, Cash 

    Nays: Schilling, Hemker 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
n.  Earth Tech Sewer Operating Contract – Operating Baselines 

 

Mr. Olson reviewed the comments indicated in his memorandum to the Board dated March 2,  

2005 regarding this issue.  He explained that justification for the increase in cost. 

 

Jim Pawlowski, Earth Tech, stated that Mr. Olson did a good job explaining the justification for 

the cost increase. 

 

 Mr. Quinn stated that for the waste water collection system he sees an amendment number one. 

 He questioned if this is the amendment that they are looking for.  He stated that there is also an 

 amendment number 2.  Mr. Olson stated that he believes that these will be the first amendments 

 to either of the contracts. 

 

 Mr. Young questioned if they are asking for the monthly fee for the waste water treatment plant 

 to be $7,326.  Mr. Pawlowski responded that the monthly fee would be $16,790 for the waste water 

 treatment plant.  He stated that the monthly fee for the collection system would be $7,326. 

 

 Mr. Pawlowski stated that amendment number one was for the extension of the contract. 

 

 Mr. Olson stated that the amendment number one is the first amendment on the system and the 

 amendment number two for the treatment plant contract is the second amendment to that  

 contract. 

 

Mr. Schilling made a motion to approve amendment number one to the operation and  

maintenance agreement for the waste water collection system for the sum of $7,326.  Mr. Hicks  

supported the motion. 

 

Mr. Young asked if there were any comments.  Mr. Hemker questioned why there was such a huge 

spike in January.  Mr. Pawlowski responded that it could have been snow melt or a combination 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 21 
 

of rain.  He explained how they use a fluctuation of the average numbers they use. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hemker, Schilling, Cash, Young, Carcone, Hicks 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 

Mr. Hemker made a motion to approve amendment number two to the operations and  

maintenance agreement for the waste water treatment plant for the contract with Earth 

Tech.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Hemker, Carcone, Young, Cash, Hicks, Schilling 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
o.  Proposal to set workshop meeting 

 

Mr. Hicks stated that he has provided the Board with a list of open issues that they have not done 

anything about.  He requested that perhaps they could schedule a workshop meeting to discuss 

them. 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to schedule a workshop meeting date.  Mr. Hemker supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
p.  Pension Plan Vesting Schedule 

 

Mr. Hemker explained that what they have right now in the pension plan for employees is what is 

called a “Money Purchase Pension Plan”.  He stated that what it is, is that everybody is immediately 

100% vested upon their entry into the plan.  He stated that once their ninety days are up they are 

given the plan and the Township begins contributing 10% of their compensation to their account 

and if they leave, they walk away with all of it.  He stated that he is proposing that they put a 

vesting schedule on this.  He stated that the employees who are currently employed with the 

Township will retain their 100% status.  This proposal is only for new hires only.  He further explained 

what is entailed with his proposal. 

 

Mr. Cash stated that the way he sees it is that you are getting 10% as a benefit for coming to work 

for the Township.  Ms. Carcone stated that nobody is going to want to work here.  She stated that 

they talked about reducing medical benefits and now they are talking about the pension plan. 

 

Mr. Olson stated that this will effect what type of employer that the Township will be.  He stated that 

in order to be able to attract top-flight employees they need to have something to offer.  He stated 

that in terms of the market, employers differ as to what type of programs they have.  He further  

discussed overall compensation packets for employees. 

 

Chief Cash stated that he didn’t see this item on the original agenda.  Mr. Young stated that it was 

an added item.  Chief Cash stated that it was his understanding that the Board decided last month 

that these drop in issues were not going to be discussed.  He stated that with the reaction the  



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 22 
 

Board has to this issue, they all better take a month and do some research to see exactly what 

Mr. Hemker is talking about. 

 

Mr. Young stated that because of the late hour, could they all agree to consider what would and 

what would not be acceptable and then discuss this further at the next meeting. 

 

Mr. Schilling made a motion to postpone the discussion of a pension plan vesting schedule until 

the next meeting.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

    Nays: None 

            Absent: Johnson 

 

 Motion approved. 

 
q.  Taste in Business Expo 

 

Ms. Carcone stated that she would like to know if the Board is interested in participating in this  

event or not.  She stated that they could wait until next year.  Mr. Young stated that it sounds  

like a good thing to do for the Township.  Mr.  Hemker questioned if there is an entry fee charge. 

Mr. Young responded that it is $200.  Mr. Hemker stated that he was inquiring about the entry fee 

for individuals who attend this event.  Ms. Carcone stated that she believed it was $10.00.  After 

further brief discussion it was determined that they would do more research on this and possibly 

do this next year.  There was no formal action taken on this issue. 

 
r.  Three items not on this agenda but discussed last month (File of Life, Pass through fees, Blitzfest) 

 

 File of Life: 

Mr. Hicks stated that with regard to the File of Life he spoke with Mr. Doozan who indicated that 

 they have used all the CDBG Funds this year that could have been used for something like this. 

 Mr. Doozan stated that this would fall under Public Service and they can use 50% of the total 

 allotment each year for public service.  He stated that they have used their 50% allotment for  

 HAVEN and the Senior Citizens programs.  He stated that the only way that they could have CDBG 

 Funds for the File of Life is to cut back on the other two items. 

 

 Mr. Hicks stated that John Bell has made an offer.  He stated that John Bell has already talked to 

 a couple potential sponsors who are willing to do this.  Chief Cash questioned what the cost per 

 thousand is for these.  Mr. Bell responded that it is $4,000 for 10,000. 

 

 Pass Through Fees: 

 Mr. Hicks stated that this could be put off until another meeting. 

 

 Blitzfest: 

 Mr. Olson gave a short report on this issue.  He stated that there has been a personnel change 

 with the Blitzfest.  He stated that Dan Reynolds, who spoke to the Board last month, is no longer 

 with Blitzfest.  He stated that they are re-organizing.  He noted that there was a new man that 

 came into the Township who indicated that they are still interested in having this function in the 

 Township Park. 

  
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR ACTION OR DISCUSSION   NONE 

 
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION REGARDING POSSIBLE PROPERTY ACQUISITION 

 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to adjourn the regular meeting and go into an Executive Session. 

Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 



  

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       March 7, 2005      Page 23 
 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes:   All 

    Nays: None 

 

 Motion approved.  The meeting was closed at 11:14 PM 

 

The executive session was called to order at 11:15 PM. 

 

The executive session was closed and the regular meeting adjourned at 11:25 PM. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Deby Cothery 
 

Deby Cothery                                            Pamela Johnson    

Recording Secretary                                                      Clerk    


